United States Department of the Interior National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Inventory—Nomination Form

For NPS use only received JUL 6 1987 date entered

	ne			
nistoric <u>Mi</u>	11er Brothers Farm			
and or common	"Kensington" "B	ig House"		
2. Loca		Ig nouse		
	201011			
treet & number	S.R. 912			N/A not for publication
ity, town	Kensington	N/A_ vicinity of		
itate Georgia	co	de 013 count	y Walker	code 295
3. Clas	sification			
Category district X building(s) structure site object	Ownership public private both Public Acquisition in process being considered	Status X occupied unoccupied work in progress Accessible yes: restricted yes: unrestricted no	entertainment government	museum park X private residence religious scientific transportation other:
1. Own	er of Prope	rty		
	orge Blackwell Smit	-		
iaine 2. Up:	shur Smith Puckette 1. 507 Pine Aver			
treet & number	2. Morgan Steep	Road		1
_	Lookout Mountain Sewanee	N/A vicinity of	state	1. Tennesee 2. Tennesee
ity, town 🗸 .	tion of Loc	al Descript	ion	
	ation of Leg	,		
5. Loca		-	Court	
5. Loca	stry of deeds, etc. Cle	rk of the Superior	Court	
5. Loca courthouse, regis	stry of deeds, etc. Clea	rk of the Superior		Georgia
5. Loca courthouse, registreet & number	stry of deeds, etc. Clear Walker County Co aFayette	rk of the Superior	state	Georgia
5. Location Litreet & number Lity, town Lite	stry of deeds, etc. Cler Walker County Co aFayette resentation	rk of the Superior ourthouse in Existing	state Surveys	
5. Location Litreet & number Lity, town Lite	stry of deeds, etc. Cler Walker County Co aFayette resentation	rk of the Superior ourthouse in Existing	state	
courthouse, registreet & number lity, town B. Reputitle Walker Co	stry of deeds, etc. Cler Walker County Co aFayette resentation	rk of the Superior ourthouse in Existing	state Surveys	eligible?yes _X_ı
courthouse, registreet & number Lity, town 6. Replicate Walker Contact Market	stry of deeds, etc. Cler Walker County Co aFayette resentation ounty Historic Reso	rk of the Superior ourthouse in Existing ource Survey	state Surveys property been determined	eligible? yes _X_ (

7. Description

Condition excellent deteriorated _X good ruins fair unexposed	Check one unaltered _X altered	Check one _X original site moved date
--	--------------------------------	--

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

Description

The Miller Brothers Farm is located in extreme northeast Georgia, with the main house, the only surviving building, located at the crest of a small hill. The house, originally designed and built to serve as a hotel, is a massive frame structure with columned verandahs on its two principal elevations. The generous scale of the first floor rooms reflects its original purpose, later adapted for residential use by a single family.

The Miller Brothers Farm, often called Kensington today, is located in Walker County in extreme northwest Georgia. The main residence, the sole surviving building on the property, is sited atop the crest of a small hill with commanding views of the nearby valley. The house is a massive frame structure, two stories set above a full brick-walled basement. The main elevation of the house faces east, with the secondary elevation facing south. Both of these principal elevations feature verandahs framed by giant order Tuscan columns. The east elevation is approaced by a T-shaped staircase leading to the verandah, while a simpler straight stair leads to the south verandah. Access from the verandahs into the house is provided by a series of large french doors with glazed upper sections. Three of these doorways open onto the east verandah, with two opening onto the south verandah. The house is L-planned in shape, with the corner formed by the "L" facing the northwest. This elevation of the house features a screened sleeping porch on the main level, supported by turned wood columns which rise from the ground to the flooring of the porch. Set underneath the broad overhangs of the two verandahs are large balconies supported by oversized console brackets. The house is covered with a very low pitched hip roof, which is covered in composition shingles. The exterior walls are clad in weatherboards, with a broad band of decorative wood shingles forming a band between the first and second floors of the house, as well as a narrow band just beneath the eaves of the roofline.

The interior of the house reflects both its original use as a hotel as well as its conversion to a large private residence. The basement is divided into a series of large rooms which were used for storage as well as one and a half bathrooms, presumably for the use of the staff of the hotel, and later, the servants employed by the Miller family. The space beneath the south verandah serves as a garage. The first, or main floor of the house is dominated by two very large rooms. The living room, which opens onto the east verandah, is approximately twenty five feet wide by fifty four feet in length. The dining room and parlor, situated at the south end of the main hall, measure approximately twenty seven feet in width and forty feet in length. This smaller space opens onto the south verandah. Adjacent to the dining room, located in the L, are a breakfast room and the kitchen. Other rooms on the main floor serve as bedrooms, with the game room situated just to the north of the living room at the opposite end of the main hall from the dining room. The main staircase is set along the center line which divides the living room into equal halves. The broad opening in the internal wall of the living room exposes the stair immediately to view as one enters the living room. The second floor of the house is devoted to a series of nine bedrooms and five bathrooms, with the bathrooms retaining their early 20thcentury fixtures.

The only other improvement on the property is the swimming pool which is situated approximately two hundred feet to the southwest from the rear of the house. The pool, which measures twenty feet in width by sixty feet in length, was built in 1915.

While the original hotel building was significantly altered during the 1915-1917 remodeling, there have been virtually no major changes to the structure since that date.

B. Significance

Period prehistoric 1400–1499 1500–1599 1600–1699 1700–1799 _X 1800–1899 _X 1900–	Areas of Significance—C archeology-prehistoric agricultureX architecture art commerce communications	heck and justify below X community planning conservation economics education engineering exploration/settle industry invention	ing landscape architectur law literature military music	re religion science sculpture social/ humanitarian theater transportation other (specify)
Specific dates	1890, 1915-1917	Builder/Architect	not known (architect)	
Statement of S	ignificance (in one paragr	anhl	Whittice and Pressley	(Contractors)

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

Significance

The Miller Brothers Farm is significant in the areas of architecture and community planning. These areas of significance support National Register eligibility in terms of National Register Criteria "C".

In the area of architecture, the farm is of significance as a rather remarkable transformation from one distinct building type to another. The house is the product of one of the most dramatic renovations in all of Georgia architecture, as the building was originally constructed as a hotel. Erected in 1890, the hotel was named the Kensington, and was to stand as a dominant feature of the new town which was to be developed around it. The hotel reflected the traditional fashions for large-scale frame resort hotels of the period, with an elaborate roofscape and a verandah running across the main elevation. The hotel was three-and-a-half stories high set on a full basement. When the hotel property was acquired by Gustavus Hindman Miller and Frank L. Miller in 1915, it was their plan to convert the structure into a residence which would serve their two families as well as guests on special occasions. The large scale of the hotel building exceeded their needs, and it was decided to reduce the mass of the building by somewhat drastic means. The upper one-and-a-half stories were removed, along with all of the turrets associated with the original structure. The original long front verandah was also removed, and approximately fifteen feet of the building were removed from the north and south ends of the east elevation. The Miller brothers evidently were intent on transforming the structure into a "southern" plantation house, even though the physical form of the reduced building would not permit an accurate replica. The final product of their remodeling must be said to represent a compromise between the ideal and what was feasible given the building in question. The exterior had been stripped of all references to the Queen Anne style of the original hotel building, with the exception of some bands of decorative wood shingles. The original verandah on the east elevation had been replaced with a monumental two-story verandah supported by Tuscan columns. A matching verandah was built on the south elevation, resulting in a more formal appearance for the house. While it is difficult to be as specific concerning the changes made to the interior of the structure, it is apparent that the great majority of the small bedrooms found in the hotel design were done away with in order to produce the large bedrooms on the second floor, especially the three room suite that opens onto the balcony on the east elevation of the house. Significantly, while walls were reorganized, the finish work of the hotel, the original door and window frames, were reused in new locations. The house that resulted from this extraordinary remodeling sat at the center of a 1,600 acre dairy farm, and is one of the largest specimens of Classical Revival domestic architecture in Georgia, albeit in a less than pure form.

In the area of community planning, the farm is significant as the sole extant remnant of the resort town of Kensington. The town was planned by a group of investors from Philadelphia, who chose the name in honor of the suburb of that city. Curiously, the plan for the town was prepared by the Chicago engineering firm of A. Zeese & Co. Organized on a conventional grid plan, the town plan included land for the development

9. Major Bibliographical References

Historic Property Information Form. Filed at Historic Preservation Section,
Department of Natural Resources, Atlanta

		······································		
10. Geograph	nical Data			
Acreage of nominated property Quadrangle name	40 and Kensington, GA	_	Quadrang	le scale 1:24000
A 1 6 6 4 8 9 0 0 0 Zone Easting C 1 6 6 4 8 3 6 0 E	3 ₁ 8 4 ₁ 9 2 ₁ 5 ₁ 0 Northing 3 ₁ 8 4 ₁ 8 6 ₁ 4 ₁ 0	B 1 6 Zone D 1 6 F	6 4 8 9 0 0 Easting 6 4 8 3 6 0	3 ₁ 8 4 ₁ 8 6 ₁ 4 ₁ 0 Northing 3 ₁ 8 4 ₁ 8 9 ₁ 8 ₁ 0
Verbal boundary description Boundary conforms to estimate it is significant landscape it descendants of Miller it. List all states and counties	current legal descr features associated brothers. Se	with the strue sketch map.	ucture, and p	roperty held by
state N/A	code	county		code
state	code	county		code
11. Form Pre name/title John C. Fer organization Georgia Depar	rguson, Architectur		te May 22,	1987
street & number 205 Butler	Street S.E.	tel	ephone (404) (556–2840
city or town Atlanta		sta	nte Georgia	1
12. State His	toric Prese	rvation (Officer C	ertification
The evaluated significance of to national As the designated State Historian	stateX c Preservation Officer for	Local the National Histor	ric Preservation A	ct of 1966 (Public Law 89–
665), I hereby nominate this pro according to the criteria and pr State Historic Preservation Offi	ocedures set forth by the	National Register a National Park Sen	rice.	as been evaluated .
		h A. Lyon fficer	date	6/2=/87
Selvers	4	National Register	date	8/6/87
Attest:	jister		date	

United States Department of the Interior National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Section number8_	Page	2	
------------------	------	---	--

of manufacturing alongside the tracks of the Chattanooga Southern Railroad. The Kensington Hotel was sited on what would have been the highest land in the town, approached by what appears to be the only curvilinear street in town. The town of Kensington did begin to develop, but that growth seemed to come to a halt after a fire in 1892 which destroyed one of the mills and the gaslight plant. This, coupled with the economic depression of 1893, seemed to seal the fate of the town, and there appeared to be little new settlement activity or further development. The Kensington Hotel did continue to operate, but was evidently not a significant success as a hotel or a resort. No trace remains of the streets which might have been laid out for the town, and none of the forty odd cottages which were actually built have been identified as surviving.

Contributing/Noncontributing Resources

1 contributing building

